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Limited of the United Kingdom.
Supplements to the complaint were
filed on October 7 and 9, 2002. The
complaint as supplemented alleges
violations of section 337 in the
importation into the United States, the
sale for importation, and the sale within
the United States after importation of
certain compact disc and DVD holders
by reason of infringement of U.S. Design
Patent No. D441,212. The complaint
further alleges that an industry in the
United States exists as required by
subsection (a)(2) of section 337.

The complainant requests that the
Commission institute an investigation
and, after the investigation, issue
permanent exclusion orders and a
permanent cease and desist order.
ADDRESSES: The complaint, except for
any confidential information contained
therein, is available for inspection
during official business hours (8:45 a.m.
to 5:15 p.m.) in the Office of the
Secretary, U.S. International Trade
Commission, 500 E Street, SW., Room
112, Washington, DC 20436, telephone
(202) 205-2000. Hearing impaired
individuals are advised that information
on this matter can be obtained by
contacting the Commission’s TDD
terminal at (202) 205—-1810. Persons
with mobility impairments who will
need special assistance in gaining access
to the Commission should contact the
Office of the Secretary at (202) 205—
2000. General information concerning
the Commission may also be obtained
by accessing its internet server at
http://www.usitc.gov. The public record
for this investigation may be viewed on
the Commission’s electronic docket
(EDIS-ON-LINE) at http://
dockets.usitc.gov/eol/public.

FOR FURTHER INFORMATION CONTACT:
Benjamin D.M. Wood, Esq., Office of
Unfair Import Investigations, U.S.
International Trade Commission,
telephone (202) 205-2582.

Authority: The authority for institution of
this investigation is contained in section 337
of the Tariff Act of 1930, as amended, and
in section 210.10 of the Commission’s Rules
of Practice and Procedure, 19 CFR 210.10
(2002).

Scope of Investigation: Having
considered the complaint, the U.S.
International Trade Commission, on
October 15, 2002, Ordered that—

(1) Pursuant to subsection (b) of
section 337 of the Tariff Act of 1930, as
amended, an investigation be instituted
to determine whether there is a
violation of subsection (a)(1)(B) of
section 337 in the importation into the
United States, the sale for importation,
or the sale within the United States after
importation, of certain compact disc and

DVD holders by reason of infringement
of U.S. Design Patent No. D441,212, and
whether an industry in the United
States exists as required by subsection
(a)(2) of section 337.

(2) For the purpose of the
investigation so instituted, the following
are hereby named as parties upon which
this notice of investigation shall be
served:

(a) The complainant is—DuBois
Limited, Amaray House, Arkwright
Road, Corby, Northamptonshire, NN7
5AE U.K.

(b) The respondents are the following
companies alleged to be in violation of
section 337, and are the parties upon
which the complaint is to be served:

Viva Magnetics Limited, 16F, E On
Factory Bldg., 14 Wong Chuk Hang
Road, Aberdeen, Hong Kong.

Matrix Associates, Inc., 1425 Monte
Grande Pl., Pacific Palisades, CA
90272.

Finest Industrial Co., Ltd., Flat A, 13/F,
Sze Hing Loong Ind. Bldg., 44 Lee
Chung Street, Chaiwan, Hong Kong.

Ponica Industries Corp., Corporate
Headquarters, 125 Klug Circle,
Corona, CA 92880.

Carthuplas, Inc., 7 Shape Drive,
Kennebunk, ME 04043.

Scanavo A/S, Roskildevej 328, DK-2630
Taastrup, Denmark, Wah-de Electron,
Co. Ltd.

No. 1, Alley 22, Lane 205, Nanshan
Road, Sec. 2, Luchu Hsiang, Taoyuan
Hsien, Taiwan,

Dragon Star Magnetics, Ltd., Room 406,
4/F Cheung Tat Centre, 18 Cheung
Lee Street, Chai Wan, Hong Kong.

(c) Benjamin D.M. Wood, Esq., Office
of Unfair Import Investigations, U.S.
International Trade Commission, 500 E
Street, SW., Suite 401, Washington, DC
20436, who shall be the Commission
investigative attorney, party to this
investigation; and

(3) For the investigation so instituted,
the Honorable Sidney Harris is
designated as the presiding
administrative law judge. Responses to
the complaint and the notice of
investigation must be submitted by the
named respondents in accordance with
section 210.13 of the Commission’s
Rules of Practice and Procedure, 19 CFR
210.13. Pursuant to 19 CFR 201.16(d)
and 210.13(a), such responses will be
considered by the Commission if
received no later than 20 days after the
date of service by the Commission of the
complaint and the notice of
investigation. Extensions of time for
submitting responses to the complaint
will not be granted unless good cause
therefor is shown. Failure of a
respondent to file a timely response to

each allegation in the complaint and in
this notice may be deemed to constitute
a waiver of the right to appear and
contest the allegations of the complaint
and to authorize the administrative law
judge and the Commission, without
further notice to that respondent, to find
the facts to be as alleged in the
complaint and this notice and to enter
both an initial determination and a final
determination containing such findings,
and may result in the issuance of a
limited exclusion order or a cease and
desist order or both directed against that
respondent.

By order of the Commission.

Issued: October 16, 2002.
Marilyn R. Abbott,
Secretary to the Commission.
[FR Doc. 02—26734 Filed 10-21-02; 8:45 am]
BILLING CODE 7020-02-P

DEPARTMENT OF JUSTICE
Immigration and Naturalization Service

Agency Information Collection
Activities; Proposed Collection;
Comment Request

ACTION: Request Emergency Approval;
Application for Asylum and for
Withholding of Removal, From 1-589.

The Department of Justice (the
Department), Immigration and
Naturalization Service has submitted an
information collection request (ICR)
utilizing emergency review procedures
to the Office of Management and Budget
(OMB) for review and clearance in
accordance with section
1320.13(a)(1)(ii) and (a)(2)(iii) of the
Paperwork Reduction Act of 1995. The
INS has determined that it cannot
reasonably comply with the normal
clearance procedures are reasonably
likely to prevent or disrupt the
collection of information. The INS is
requesting emergency review from OMB
of this information collection to ensure
compliance with the Enhanced Border
Security and Visa Entry Reform Act of
2002 (Border Security Act) (Pub. L. 107—
173 (May 14, 2002)).

The INS seeks permission to use the
Form I-589 to serve as an alternate
application for evidence of employment
authorization for individuals granted
asylum, eliminating their need to file a
separate Form I-765, Application for
Employment Authorization (OMB No.
1115-0163) with the INS if, after being
granted asylum, they wish to receive an
Employment Authorization Document
(EAD) containing both evidence of
employment authorization and identity.
The Form I-589 collects the same
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biographic information as that collected
by the Form I-765. In those cases where
asylum is granted, the biographic
information contained on the I-589
could also be used to generate the
employment authorization document.
While dual-use has advantages for both
the government and the public with
respect to streamlining information
collections, passage of the Border
Security Act has increased the necessity
of developing such a process. Section
309 of the Border Security Act requires
the Attorney General to begin issuing an
employment authorization document
(EAD) with a photo and fingerprint to
asylees “immediately”” upon the grant of
asylum. Such procedures must be in
place as November 10, 2002. Due to the
passage of the Border Security Act the
question of how to process asylee
employment authorization documents
became even more critical. The INS and
the Department now seek emergency
OMB approval for the dual use of the
Form I-589 to enable the INS to comply
with the Border Security Act
implementation date of November 10,
2002, as discussed above.

For the aforementioned reasons, the
INS is requesting emergency OMB
review and approval of this information
collection request by October 24, 2002.
If granted, the emergency approval is
only valid for 180 days. ALL comments
and/or questions pertaining to this
pending request for emergency approval
must be directed to OMB, Office of
Information and Regulatory Affairs,
Attention: Department of Justice Desk
Officer, 725-17th Street, NW., Suite
10102, Washington, DC 20503.
Comments regarding the emergency
submission of this information
collection may also be submitted via
facsimile to (202) 395-6974.

During the first 60 days of this same
period, a regular review of this
information collection is also being
undertaken. During the regular review
period, the INS requests written
comments an suggestions from the
public and affected agencies concerning
this information collection. Comments
are encouraged and will be accepted
until December 23, 2002. During the 60-
day regular review, ALL comments and
suggestions or questions regarding
additional information, to include
obtaining a copy of the information
collection instrument with instructions,
should be directed to Mr. Richard A.
Sloan, (202) 514-3291, Director,
Regulations and Forms Services
Division, Immigration and
Naturalization Service, U.S. Department
of Justice, Room 4034, 425 I Street, NW.,
Washington, DC 20536. Written
comments and suggestions from the

public and affected agencies concerning
the proposed collection of information
should address one or more of the
following four points:

(1) Evaluate whether the proposed
collection of information is necessary
for the proper performance of the
functions of the agency, including
whether the information will have
practical utility;

(2) Evaluate the accuracy of the
agencies estimate of the burden of the
proposed collection of information,
including the validity of the
methodology and assumptions used;

(3) Enhance the quality, utility, and
clarity of the information to be
collected; and

(4) Minimize the burden of the
collection of information on those who
are to respond, including through the
use of appropriate automated,
electronic, mechanical, or other
technological collection techniques or
other forms of information technology,
e.g., permitting electronic submission of
responses.

Overview of this information
collection:

(1) Type of Information Collection:
Revision of a currently approved
collection.

(2) Title of the Form/Collection:
Application for Asylum and
Withholding of Removal.

(3) Agency form number, if any, and
the applicable component of the
Department of Justice sponsoring the
collection: Form 1-589. Office of
International Affairs, Immigration and
Naturalization Service.

(4) Affected public who will be asked
or required to respond, as will as a brief
abstract: Primary: Individuals or
Households. This information collection
will be used to determine whether an
alien applying for asylum and/or
withholding of deportation in the
United States is classifiable as a refugee,
and is eligible to remain in the United
States.

(5) An estimate of the total number of
respondents and the amount of time
estimated for an average respondent to
respond: 78,000 responses at 12 hours
per response.

(6) An estimate of the total public
burden (in hours) associated with the
collection: 936,000 annual burden
hours.

If you have additional comments,
suggestions, or need a copy of the
proposed information collection
instrument with instructions, or
additional information, please contact
Richard A. Sloan (202) 514-3291,
Director, Regulations and Forms
Services Division, Immigration and
Naturalization Service, U.S. Department

of Justice, Room 4034, 425 I Street, NW.,
Washington, DC 20536. Additionally,
comments and/or suggestions regarding
the item(s) contained in this notice,
especially regarding the estimated
public burden and associated response
time may also be directed to Mr.
Richard A. Sloan.

If additional information is required
contact: Mr. Robert B. Briggs, Clearance
Officer, United States Department of
Justice, Information Management and
Security Staff, Justice Management
Division, 601 D Street, NW., Patrick
Henry Building, Suite 1600,
Washington, DC 20530.

Dated: October 17, 2002.
Richard A. Sloan,
Department Clearance Officer, Department of
Justice, Immigration and Naturalization
Service.
[FR Doc. 02—26866 Filed 10—-21—-02; 8:45 am]
BILLING CODE 4410-10-M

DEPARTMENT OF LABOR
Office of the Secretary

Submission for OMB Review;
Comment Request

October 9, 2002.

The Department of Labor (DOL) has
submitted the following public
information collection requests (ICRs) to
the Office of Management and Budget
(OMB) for review and approval in
accordance with the Paperwork
Reduction Act of 1995 (Pub. L. 104-13,
44 U.S.C. Chapter 35). A copy of each
individual ICR, with applicable
supporting documentation, may be
obtained by calling the Department of
Labor. To obtain documentation contact
Marlene Howze at (202) 693—4158 or e-
mail Howze-Marlene@dol.gov.

Comments should be sent to Office of
Information and Regulatory Affairs,
Attn: OMB Desk Officer for PWBA,
Office of Management and Budget,
Room 10235, Washington, DC 20503
((202) 395-7316), within 30 days from
the date of this publication in the
Federal Register.

* Evaluate whether the proposed
collection of information is necessary
for the proper performance of the
functions of the agency, including
whether the information will have
practical utility;

* Evaluate the accuracy of the
agency’s estimate of the burden of the
proposed collection of information,
including the validity of the
methodology and assumptions used;

* Enhance the quality, utility, and
clarity of the information to be
collected; and minimize the burden of
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